THE IDENTIFICATION OF DESCRIPTIVE VARIABLES RELATED TO MOBILITY PATTERNS OF THE ELDERLY:) A CASE STUDY OF A MULTI-UNIT HOUSING RESIDENCE IN MANEATTAN, KANSAS

by

FREDERICK H. ROHLES III

B. S., Kansas State University, 1973

A MASTER'S THESIS

submitted in partial fulfillment of the

requirements for the degree

MASTER OF REGIONAL AND COMMUNITY PLANNING

Department of Regional and Community Planning

KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY Manhattan, Kansas

1975

Approved by:

Major Professor

-D 2668 T4 1175 R64 C.3 Document

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The author wishes to express his thanks and appreciation to the occupants of the tower in Manhattan, Kansas for their support. In addition, the author would like to thank Dr. Ufere Torti for his wisdom and insight, Dr. R. L. D. Morse, Dr. George Peters, Professor Windley and the late Professor Leland Edmonds for their help and encouragement and his wife, Nina for her patience and encouragement. The author expressly wishes to thank his father, Dr. Frederick H. Rohles, Jr. for his help and support.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter		Page
ı.	INTRODUCTION	1
	Purpose	3
	Key Concepts	4
II.	PROCEDURE	6
	Residential Location	6
	Preliminary Testing	6
	Instrument	6
	Data Collection	7
III.	RESULTS	8
	The Subjects	8
	Attitudes Towards Traveling	8
	Actual Trip Patterns	10
	Significant Nonmobility Variables	13
	Health	14
zi.	Friendship Association	15
	Relatives in Manhattan	16
	Length of Residence	17
	Income	17
IV.	DISCUSSION	18
	Transportation Policies and the Disadvantaged	18
	Transportation, Physical and Economic Factors	19
	The Elderly: Transportation or Mobility	20
	Planning Implications	23

Chapter V. CONCLUSIONS	de.
V. CONCLUSIONS Summary of the Data Implications For Planning Recommendations REFERENCES LIST OF WORKS CONSULTED APPENDIX	Page
Implications For Planning	25
REFERENCES	25
REFERENCES	25
LIST OF WORKS CONSULTED	26
APPENDIX	27
	28
	31
A. A. C.	* 0

LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
1.	Summary of Demographic Characteristics	9
2.	Summary of Perceived Trip Patterns and Attitudes	11
3.	Summary of Actual Trip Patterns	13
4.	Chi Square Values of Association Between Nonmobility Variables and Mobility Characteristics	14

CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

With the financial independence afforded by social security, increases pension and retirement benefits, many elderly have adjusted comfortably to the life styles of older age. Many elderly own or rent their own homes. There are many elderly, however, who receive low pension benefits and, coupled with an increase in the cost of living over the past decade, simply cannot afford to own, rent or maintain their own homes. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development initiated legislation in the 87th Congress to help this particular group of low income elderly, by providing residences with rents based on a percentage of the total annual income. In addition to providing low income rental units, the federally sponsored complexes, along with various community groups and organizations, are providing additional services to meet the particular needs of this group of elderly. The central theme for policies concerning these units, developed by the federal government, has involved specific location and design criterion.

Most of the complexes are located reasonably close to major shopping and service centers. In addition, many communities have implemented programs geared towards providing access to recreation and community participation. Many of these programs take place within the confines of the complexes. Transportation services have also been provided for this particular group of elderly. Bus routes or mini-bus services have been routed to these complexes and sidewalks and traffic crossings have, in some cases, been improved to insure the safety of elderly who walk from

these complexes.

Specific design specifications for these units have included features of special lighting, fire protection, temperature control, easy access for handicap individuals and interior design of apartments to meet the special needs of this group of low income elderly.

Of the services provided to these low income elderly, transportation has the greatest implications as to whether or not the elderly residents can complete tasks involved in day to day living. Grocery or general shopping, appointment with service centers, visiting friends or relatives, attending community meetings and going to work cannot be accomplished without physical movement from the complex to the point of destination. The modes of transportation for these "trips" may vary from self-driven automobile, walking, bus, taxi, use of friends car, or having a friend or relative drive. The degree to which these modes of transportation are available and the trips completed may determine the extent of the completion of the tasks of daily living by this group of elderly.

One area of inquiry involves whether or not there are characteristics or factors which may describe the ability of these low income elderly to be physically mobile. Are there factors in an individuals life which, other than accessibility, may hinder or help mobility?

Rohles (1970), in describing the relationship between man and his physical environment has identified three major classes of variables:

physical factors such as sound, light, temperature; organismic factors which are used to define the living organism, which include age, sex, psyche, genetics, drive and physical condition; and adaptive factors which are those variables that interact between man and his physical environment

and enable him to adapt to his environment. These adaptive factors include diet, clothing, exposure, social factors and activity. These are the independent variables that must be defined before examining the effects of the environment on the dependent variables of physiology (health), behavior (both learned and innate) and affectivity or feelings.

With minor modifications this paradigm can be employed in studying the mobility behavior of the federally housed low income elderly. The physical factors, by virtue of near identical living conditions are fairly uniform for all occupants in these complexes. However, the organismic variables of age, sex, physical conditions and socio-economic factors of income, marital status, number of living relatives and number of friends are not uniform.

There are very few studies which examined the relationship between these variables and mobility behavior. One of the most significant contributions concerning mobility behavior was done by Frances Carp in 1969. Carp analyzed the affect these independent variables had on mobility behavior. Carp found that among 14 variables, income, health, sex and marital status were significantly correlated to the number of trips made by the elderly. The study found that those with poor health or who did not own a car were very immobile.

Purpose

Since the relationship between these variables and mobility behavior is unknown, yet to some extent critical from the standpoint of planning, a need exists to examine the relationships. This fact spawned the present study.

The purpose of this study was to analyze the relationship between variables of age, sex, marital status, income, number of living relatives, number of friends and attitudes towards traveling and variables of mobility in order that conclusions and recommendations can be made about low income elderly housing. Mobility behavior will be measured as the number of trips, length of trips, mode of transportation and the type of trip or trip purpose. The study pertains to low income elderly residents located in a federal housing project in Manhattan, Kansas.

Key Concepts

For the purposes of this study, the following concepts are classified as the nonmobility variables: age, sex, income, marital status, length of residence, number of living relatives, number of friends, attitudes towards traveling and health. These are defined as follows:

Age: The chronological years of each subject.

Income: The yearly annual money income from all sources for each subject.

Length of Residence: The total number of years as a resident in the study area.

Number of Living Relatives: All living relatives residing in the study area at the time of the study.

Health, Perceived: The type of health the subject believes himself or herself to be in (excellent, good, fair, poor).

Health, Actual: The number of trips to medical service areas for treatment of varying degrees of illnesses over a one year period.

Attitudes Towards Traveling: The specific feelings towards certain aspects of physical mobility, expressed in regard to these statements

("I can travel rain or shine," "I like to travel," "It is best for me to take a bus").

For purposes of this study mobility will be divided into four dependent variables: trip frequency, trip length (time), trip purpose and mode of transportation.

Trip: The movement from an origin to a point of destination.

Trip Frequency: The number of trips taken during the study period outside the complex.

Length of Trip: The total number of hours spent away from the complex, both during the trip, at the trip destination and return trip.

Trip Purpose: The reason given by respondent for taking each trip, including but not limited to such measures as shopping, service appointments, visitation of friend or relative, just to get out of the complex, and the attendance of meetings.

Mode of Transportation: The type of transportation used in each trip; car, bus, taxi, foot, friend car, or relatives car.

CHAPTER II

PROCEDURE

Residential Location

The case study was taken from the Apartment Tower, located at 300 North Fifth Street in Manhattan, Kansas. The Tower was built in April, 1973 through bonds established by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. The Apartment Tower is designed for persons over sixty-two years of age with the second floor especially designed for the handicapped. The units are managed by the Housing Authority of the City of Manhattan. The facility is located one block from Manhattan's downtown business district and one-half block from the main city post office. Major bus routes have scheduled stops within a block of the complex.

Preliminary Testing

Following three and one-half months of weekly visitations, with approximately 15 elderly occupants it was determined that the optimum time for maximum occupant contact was during the first week of each month. The reason for this time is due to the fact that social security and pension checks are mailed and delivered on or around the first of the month. It was observed that occupants were home around these dates most likely to pick up their checks and deposit or cash them. Five of these fifteen elderly residents were used to pre-test the questionnaires.

Instrument

To study the mobility behavior of this group of elderly two questionnaires were developed. The first questionnaire asked specific questions about nonmobility behavior variables, while the second asked for responses on the actual mobility patterns of frequency, length, purpose and mode used in each trip. (The questionnaire used to collect data on these variables is attached in Appendix I,

Data Collection

The survey took place over a seven day period, March 2 through March 9.

The first questionnaire on the nonmobility behavior variables was asked on Monday only. The questionnaire on the mobility behavior was asked on Monday and repeated every day over the seven day period.

At the time of the survey, only 85 of the 88 apartments were rented.

A total population of 89 existed at the time of the survey.

The first questionnaire took approximately five minutes to administer. Except for a few respondents who were not available Monday, the data on the nonmobility variables were collected by late Monday night. The questionnaire on mobility behavior was asked for trip patterns of the day before, since it was found to be impossible to get all respondents patterns the same day they occurred. It was impossible for respondents at 8:00 in the morning on Monday to tell the surveyor what trips occurred on Monday.

The survey started at approximately 8:30 in the morning and was completed by 10:00 in the evening of the same day.

CHAPTER III

RESULTS

The Subjects

The study sampled 66 subjects, 59 females and 7 males. Of the respondents surveyed, the mean age was 72.56. Only ten respondents were 65 years or younger, while 40 respondents were 70 years and older. Fifty-one respondents were widows or widowers. The mean annual income for male respondents was between \$2,000.00 and \$3,000.00 with three male respondents reporting earnings less than \$1,000.00 annually. Thirty-six females and three males reported finishing high school, nine females attained formal college education. Thirty-eight females and three males indicated they had lived in Manhattan ten years or more. In general, male respondents indicated fewer living relatives in the community than females. Most male and female respondents indicated their health to be in good (no major hospitalization) condition. Additional demographic characteristics are provided on the following page in Table 1.

Attitudes Towards Traveling

In general, the respondents have a variety of feelings towards traveling. Thirty-seven females and five males indicated they strongly agreed with the statement "I like to travel" while twelve said they strongly disagreed. On the statement "traveling is not for me" twenty-two respondents indicated strong disagreement while twenty indicated strong agreement.

In terms of general mobility patterns, only one female and no males indicated getting out more than twice a day, on an average day. Twenty-five females and three males indicated traveling just twice a day. Both

Table 1. Summary of Demographic Characteristics

	Male	Per cent	Female	Per cent
Marital Status				
Single	1	14	3	5 5
Married	2	29	3	
Widow-widower	4	57	47	80
Divorced	. 0	0	6	10
Income		89		
\$1,000	3	43	6	10
\$1,000 - \$3,000	3 1	43	27	46
\$3,000 +	1	14	26	44
Education				*
Grade School	4	57	13	22
High School	3	43	36	61
Vocational	0	0	1	2
Advanced	0	0	9	15
Living Relatives				
5	6	86	31	53
5 - 9	1	14	12	20
10 - 14	0	0	6	10
15 - 20	0	0	10	17
Health, Perceived				
Excellent	1	14	15	25
Good	2	29	13	22
Fair	1	14	20	34
Poor	3	43	11	19
Health, Actual			8	
No. of trips for:			2E	
Minor Checkups				
5	7	100	56	95
6 - 10	0	0	3	5
Suggested Prescriptions	9 <u>2.4</u> 1	2722	_20 102	<u> 2</u> 022)
5	7	100	46	78
6 - 10	0	0	13	22
Minor Hospitalization	-	100		100
5 Maior Noonitelination	7	100	59	100
Major Hospitalization 5	7	100	58	98
6 +	ó	0		2
U T	U	U	1	2

Table 1. (cont.)

				SO U. D. M. SERVICE SHOP
	Male	Per cent	Female	Per cent
Friendship Association				
Inside Complex		77		
4	3	43	11	19
5 - 9	0	0	17	29
10 - 14	2	29	13	22
15 - 19	0	0	4	7
20 - 24	1	14	6	10
25 +	1	14	8	14
Outside Complex				
4	3	43	23	39
5 - 9	1	14	8	14
10 - 14	1	14	13	22
15 - 19	0	0	5	9
20 - 24	0	0	6	10
25 +	2	29	6	10

male and female mean responses indicate that most of the sample travels more than twice a week, but, on the average, less than once a day. In addition, twenty-six respondents indicated trips for shopping at least once a week while twenty-six respondents also indicate trips for shopping between two and four times a week. Meeting, church, doctor, school and work had very low frequencies and were not used in the analysis. Additional data summaries on perceived trip patterns and attitudes are found on the following page in Table 2.

Actual Trip Patterns

Over the seven day period, 241 trips were taken. The highest number of trips occurred on Saturday (97 or 39 per cent). Sunday was the second highest with 51 or 21 per cent of the trips taken that day. Sunday was followed by Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday in order of

Table 2. Summary of Perceived Trip Patterns and Attitudes

	Male	Female
Attitudes Towards Traveling		
I Like to Travel		
Strongly Agree	5	32
Agree	1	9
Disagree	0	. 6
Strongly Disagree	0	11
Traveling is Not For Me		W
Strongly Agree	2	18
Agree	1	10
Disagree	2	11
Strongly Disagree	2	20
I can Travel Rain or Shine		8
Strongly Agree	0	13
Agree	2	17
Disagree	2 2 3	19
Strongly Disagree	3	9
I Travel Best Alone		
Strongly Agree	0	6
Agree	1	13
Disagree	2	26
Strongly Disagree	4	14
I Like Company when I Travel		
Strongly Agree	4	13
Agree	2	24
Disagree	1	20
Strongly Disagree	0	2
It is Best for me to Take a Bus		
Strongly Agree	1	11
Agree	3	18
Disagree	3 2	24
Strongly Disagree	1	6
Perceived Weekly Trips		
How many times do you get our a week?		
+ Twice a day	0	1
Twice a day	0	5
Once a day		2 5
More than twice a week	3 2 1	12
Twice a week	1	12
Once a week	0	4
Can't say	1	0

Table 2. (cont.)

	Male	Female
Perceived Trip Purpose		
Just To Get Out		
0 - 4	7	59
5 - 10	0	. 0
To Visit A Friend		
0 - 4	7	55
5 - 10	0	4
To Shop		
0 - 4	6	52
5 - 10	1	7
To Church		
0 - 4	7	59
5 - 10	. 0	0
To Meeting		
0 - 4	7	59
5 - 10	0	0
Perceived Transportation Used Most Often		
Own Auto	3	18
Rent Auto	0	1
Friends Car	1	2
Relatives Car	0 2 1	12
Taxi	2	24
Bus		0
Walk	0	2

decreasing number of trips.

Four distinct categories of types of trips were taken: 38 per cent to the grocery store, 17 per cent to service centers, 17 per cent to a friends house, and 90 per cent to eating establishments. The remaining four per cent were taken over a wide range of destinations.

Respondents spent a total of 484 hours in trips, Saturday and Sunday had the largest number of hours. More hours were spent with friends and

shopping than eating or going to a service area.

Over the 241 trips taken during the seven day period, eighty-seven were taken by ones own auto, eighty-four were taken in a friends car and thirty-three were taken in a taxi. Additional data summaries on actual trip patterns are found in Table 3.

Table 3. Summary of Actual Trip Patterns

Actual Daily Trips	Totals
March 2	66
3	51
3 4 5 6	36
5	23
6	24
7 8	16
8	92
	241
Destination	
Shop	92
Service	42
Friends	78
Eating	21
_	241
Mode	
Auto	87
Friends	84
Taxi	53

Significant Nonmobility Variables

Nonmobility variables were cross-tabulated with each of the four mobility behavior variables. Table 4 illustrates the incidence of association with statistical significance of p = .05 or less. Health, friendship associations inside and outside the complex, length of residence, relations in Manhattan, income and attitudes towards traveling have significant

Table 4. Chi Square Values of Association Between
Nonmobility Variables and Mobility Characteristics

Nonmobility	Frequency of Trips		Type of Trip		Length of Trip		Mode of Trip	
Characteristics	df	x ²	df	x ²	df	x ²	df	x ²
Health	33	53**	18 15	28 [*] 25 ^{**}	57	85***	18	34**
Friends Outside	264	331***	120	152*	456	537 **		985
Friends Inside			88	115*				
Length of Residency					171	113***		
Relatives in Manhattan					285	355**		
Income							24	36 *

Note: Significance levels 5 per cent, 1 per cent and 0.1 per cent or less are denoted by one, two, or three asterisks respectively.

associations with the frequency type, length and mode in mobility behavior.

Health

Of the seven independent variables, health has significant associations with the frequency, type, length and mode of transportation.

The direction of the relationship is critical in this particular association. It appears that as health improves, the frequency of trips and hours in trips increase. In addition, as health improves the incidence of trips to a friends house or the grocery store also increase. Those subjects who reported being in good health were more apt to use their own car in transportation.

This finding supports the results of Leon Pastalon, who determined that activity is higher among healthier than unhealthier elderly. It is also supported by Greenbaum (1972) who found that self-perception of health affects the degree of association between the elderly. 4

Health had the highest number of associations with the dependent variables. Health has a significant relationship with mobility behavior to the extent that it is associated with the frequency, type, length and mode of transportation in trip behavior. This result does not allow the prediction of mobility based on health or any other variable but does allow the investigator to describe the problems of elderly mobility more vividly.

Friendship Association

The number of friends the elderly have in Manhattan, both inside and outside the complex had significant associations with the frequency of trips, trip types, length of trip and mode. Friendship association outside the complex had a greater number of associations than friendship associations inside the complex. One result was that the greater the number of friends outside the complex the greater the frequency of trips, trips taken only to the grocery store, and length of trip. The greater the number of frienship associations inside the complex the greater the number of hours in length of trip and the greater the use of a friends car. More often than not, those who had more friends inside the complex, tended to "catch a ride" in a fellow tenant's car than use any other form of transportation. Among the groups who had high inside friendship associations were two distinct groups of "travelers": (a) those who drove "most of the time" and (b) those who "rode most of the time." Friendship

associations may describe adaptive factors involved in the mobility patterns of the elderly.

Relatives in Manhattan

Kirson Weinberg found that the closer an elderly person is to relatives the more active that elderly person is with those people. This fact may be described by a result of this study. The number of relatives in Manhattan was significantly associated with a high frequency of general shopping and a greater number of hours spent in trips. It was observed that trips to shopping areas over the seven day period were taken with company in the form of relatives or friends. Those who had more relatives in Manhattan tended to spend more time (length of trip) at the point of destination than those with fewer relatives.

A case in point involves one on the most interesting aspects of this study. The investigator discovered during the survey that a great length of time was spent shopping, and at the same time little money was spent at these shopping areas. Of the trips taken to shop, twenty-eight were taken "without friends" or were taken alone. Of these twenty-eight trips to shop, greater than five dollars was spent, with a mean time of 27 minutes for each trip. Fifty-one trips to shop, spending less than one dollar, had a mean trip time of one hour and nineteen minutes. These later trips involved either picking a friend up on the way or being picked up by a friend. Thirteen trips varied on time spent, amount of money used and the presence or non-presence of friends or relatives. The incidence of relatives in the subjects trip tended to increase the time spent on the trip.

Length of Residence

The length of residence in Manhattan was related to the actual number of hours spent in trips. The greater the length of residence in Manhattan the longer the trips. Conversely, the shorter the length of residence the shorter the trips. This result may be due, in part, to such elements as how quick the elderly learn street patterns, names and major service and business outlets, and friendship or community association. As time increases so also does the amount the elderly have learned about the community, its patterns and business areas. This fact may or may not mean longer trips but could possibly mean that the elderly person is a little more at ease with the surroundings and can take a little more time in trips.

Income

Income was highly associated with the weekly frequency of the use of a friends car. Apparently, as income increases the use of a friends car also increases. Income has some bearing on the amount of social participation on the part of the elderly. Apparently, a decrease or increase in the amount of income affects social participation.

CHAPTER IV

DISCUSSION

Planning is a method used by the public to appraise, anticipate and direct human behavior in the development of urban areas. More explicitly planning attempts to inventory and collect information, develop goals and objectives concerning the problem, develop a list of alternatives for review, involve citizen and non-citizen input into the selection of one alternative and follow through the implementation process.

The problem of mobility or transportation of the elderly must include an analysis of planning and planning policies that have attempted to deal with the problem. In addition, planning should be reviewed as to how it attempts to approach, develop and implement programs for the disadvantaged in general.

Transportation Policies and the Disadvantaged

The United States Department of Transportation has concluded that adequate transportation is an important factor in affording disadvantaged citizens access to opportunities of employment, recreation and other services.

In the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1970, Congress stated that it was the national policy that elderly and handicapped persons should have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation facilities and services, that special efforts should be made to make mass transportation services available to these groups and that federal programs in mass transportation assistance should contain provisions for implementing this policy.

In addition, federally sponsored housing units for the elderly have been tied to federal policies encouraging the availability of transportation to the elderly. The Department of Housing and Urban Development has required detailed studies as to the proposed location of each housing complex sponsored with federal money. One of the prerequisites for the location of these units is that their location should be reasonably accessible to shopping and service areas by major transportation routes and transportation services.

The location criteria of federally sponsored housing units has attempted to alleviate the major transportation problems of the disadvantaged by making service and business areas more accessible by locating the units so as to make their access reasonable in terms of safety, time and distance and bring mass transit services closer to these units.

Both the location criteria and programs implemented to provide immediate transportation for the handicapped and the elderly attempt to make the task of physical movement from federal units to service and business areas less burdensome and more safe. The question of the effectiveness of the programs to provide access to services and business areas can best be answered by an examination of transportation, in general.

Transportation: Physical and Economic Factors

The entire notion of transportation is affected by physical and economic factors. Both of these elements may affect the overall performance of transportation systems and policies.

One basic economic premise concerning transportation is that externalities in consumption and production is accomplished only by communication between business firms, the labor force and consumers. A major part of this interaction is performed by transportation and transportation networks. The use of transportation, either public or private, may affect the extent to which those who are disadvantaged may be able to "move up" out of poverty by providing access to jobs, service areas and business, which were otherwise inaccessible due to time in travel and distance. The use of transportation may affect consumer choice to the extent that transportation provides access to numerous competitive businesses and service areas. Transportation is affected by and affects the economics of urban areas by providing access to production and consumption markets.

Transportation is also affected by physical geographic factors. The greater the distance in time and space between a point of origin and a point of destination the less intense that destinations use. Conversely, the shorter the distance in time and space the greater the intensity of use. The time and space in physical dimensions of transportation may affect the intensity of use of those areas of production and consumption.

Physical and economic factors may affect the effectiveness of transportation. For the elderly, physical and economic dimensions in transportation take on new and more critical roles, in their ability to be mobile.

The Elderly: Transportation or Mobility

The physical and economic factors become more critical in determining the extent of the use of transportation and transportation systems among the elderly. Because of this fact, policies and programs for the elderly become more difficult to determine and create.

To begin, the economic factors in consumption and production among the aged are negligible due to retirement and subsequent lower incomes.

Therefore, physical mobility among this particular age group should become less intense. Retirement obviously causes a reduction in the amount of trips previously taken to work and due to a decrease in incomes causes a decrease in consumption patterns and purchasing power, thus lowering the number of trips to service and business areas.

Physical factors of time and space become even more critical as age increases. Due to health and financial cost, the elderly may be less able to travel great distances to shop or visit friends and relatives. In addition, safety factors involved or hazards may discourage the elderly from continuing previous travel patterns.

Much of transportation planning has been geared around the physical and economic factors which may affect and are affected by transportation. The entire realm of transportation for the elderly has been concerned with making transportation facilities and services accessible and safe, rather than concerning itself with making this age group maintain the patterns of mobility previously made when they were younger, employed and had families. There is an important distinction between providing accessibility to transportation and making the elderly more mobile.

First, we know that mobility tends to decrease as income decreases.

Most of the elderly are subject to drastic reductions in income at the time of their retirement, thus forcing a decrease in their standard of living and a corresponding decrease in the necessity of the use of transportation resources. Social Security benefits and pensions, in most cases, only provide "subsistence" incomes and disallows the full consumer patterns previously enjoyed before retirement.

Second, as evidenced by this study, health may have a significant

effect on the ability of the elderly to be physically mobile. The study found that the better the health the greater the intensity of mobility and use of transportation facilities. The degree of health of the elderly is related to income or, in this case, the ability to pay for medical services. The Federal Government has attempted to make significant changes in elderly health care but the financial burden incurred by poor health is still unattended by policies and programs. We may conclude that we may increase elderly mobility if we correspondingly better the health of the elderly by providing adequate and inexpensive health care. We can design all the buses, transport systems and facilities we can, but if our prospective passengers are sick, we will be financing empty buses, and transportation facilities.

Friendship association has a significant impact on elderly mobility.

It is clear that the fewer the friends the elderly have the less intense their mobility patterns. It is true that we cannot force friendship formations, but we can provide community services which otherwise do not exist, that make associations for this age group more accessible.

These elements, in addition to economic and physical factors, may make clearer the changes necessary to optimize elderly mobility. The rational policy of transportation for the elderly should be modified to include not only the right to access of transportation, but the right to maintain mobility patterns previously held before retirement. The planner's and administrator's inability to plan for the maintenance of previous patterns of mobility by the elderly may have caused several critical problems concerning this age group.

For example, the lack of adequate health care followed by increasing

dependence by the elderly on the purse strings of their children and relatives. The lack of inexpensive health care has additionally caused severe health problems for many elderly who cannot afford hospital expenses.

Second, the lack of income above subsistence levels has caused starvation and evictions from housing among the elderly. This age group is particularly susceptible to inflationary cycles, due to their low fixed incomes.

Third, upon retirement a great number of elderly move to areas in the United States with particular climates for their health. One only needs to look at urban areas like Miami, Florida and Sun City, Arizona to get a description of this mass exodus. These areas become "final homes" for the elderly.

These three factors could have caused a great deal of stress and strain on the part of planners and governmental officials in efforts to devise programs to deal with the problems.

Planning Implications

Effective planning of transportation for the elderly should include careful analysis of physical and economic factors affecting transportation. More importantly, are studies and policies concerning elements indirectly related to elderly transportation including health, income and friendship association. Such an analysis should attempt to view transportation by the elderly as an effort to maintain previous mobility patterns.

If such an analysis is to be made the federal and state governments should examine present policies and programs which deal with the health and incomes of this age group. New legislation should be encouraged in the support of incomes and inexpensive and adequate health care.

Legislation of these two factors probably the most critical element of planning. Present legislation on National Health Insurance should be encouraged and additional monetary support and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the present social security system should take place.

In addition, planning at the local level should include intense participation by elderly citizens in an effort to receive as much input for policy formulation as possible. Citizen participation should be encouraged for the location of federally sponsored complexes, transportation facilities and programs that will encourage community participation by the elderly.

Efforts should be made to include the elderly in all studies of planning.

Most importantly, planners should begin to reassess preconceived notions about the elderly. Planners and plans should be encouraged to make policies that protect previously established life styles and in particular, mobility patterns. Planners should be encouraged to study inter-related elements which might affect such maintenance.

CHAPTER V

CONCLUSIONS

The case study involved an analysis of variables related to the trip patterns of 59 residents at the Manhattan Tower. The independent variables were analyzed using the Statiscal Package for the Social Sciences computer program, utilizing Chi-Square statistics.

Summary of the Data

The data indicates that health, number of living relatives, number of years in Manhattan and friendship associations are related to the degree of mobility patterns among the elderly. In particular, health was found to be very descriptive as to the frequency and types of trips taken by the elderly. It was found that the better the perceived and actual health the greater the frequency of varied trip patterns. In addition, the data indicates that recreational trips were taken more frequently among residents in good health. Residents in poorer health tended to take shorter trips in terms of time spent on the trip and at the destination and spent more money than those elderly who were in good health and spent more money.

Implications For Planning

It is concluded that all efforts should be made to maintain previously established mobility patterns by the elderly. This fact should change policies and programs for health care and income levels of the elderly. All plans should be concerned with dealing with indirectly related elements such as income and health when making policies for the elderly.

Recommendations

Federal and state governments should re-evaluate current policies and legislation on elderly health care and income levels. Specific legislation and programs should be developed to encourage the maintenance of previously established life styles and mobility patterns.

Plans and planners should change or be re-evaluated so as to remove "retirement" from notions about the elderly and replace them with notions of "maintenance".

REFERENCES

- 1. Frederick H. Rohles, The Ecosystem Complex: A New Approach To Specifying The Man-Environment Relationship, Reprint, Institute of Environmental Research, Kansas State University, p. 2.
- 2. Frances Carp, "Correlates of Mobility Among the Elderly," Journal of Gerontology, p. 57.
- 3. Leon Pastalon, <u>How the Elderly Negotiate Their Environment</u>, Proceedings from a conference on Behavior Research Utilization and Environmental Policy, p.
- 4. Maurice Greenbaum, "Tenants Perceptions of Health Service in Two Apartment Buildings for the Elderly," Aging and Human Development, p. 333.
- 5. Kirson Weinberg, Social Problems In Modern Urban Family, p. 220.

THIS BOOK CONTAINS NUMEROUS PAGES WITH MULTIPLE PENCIL AND/OR PEN MARKS THROUGHOUT THE TEXT.

THIS IS THE BEST IMAGE AVAILABLE.

LIST OF WORKS CONSULTED

- Anderson, Nancy. "Effects of Institutionalization on Self-Esteem," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 22, 1967, 313.
- Barker, Roger. "The Psychological Ecology of Old People in Midwest Kansas and Yoredale, Yorkshires," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 16, 1961, 144.
- Bell, Tony. "The Relationship Between Social Involvement and Feeling Old Among Residents in Homes for the Aged," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 22, 1967, 17.
- Breslow, Lester. "Aging and Community Health Programs," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 9, 1954, 225.
- Botwinick, Jack. "Cautiousness in Advanced Age," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 21, 1966, 347.
- Brennan, Michael. The Economics of Age. New York: W. W. Norton and Company, 1967.
- Brinley, Joseph. "Preparation Time and Choice in Relation to Age Differences in Response Speed," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 14, 1959, 226.
- Carp, Francis. "Correlates of Mobility Among the Elderly," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 22, 1967, 308.
- Carson, Daniel. "Human Factors and Elements of Urban Housing," Symposium Proceedings of Human Factors Applications in Urban Development. New York: Riverside Research Institute, 1970.
- Cutter, Stephen. "The Effects of Transportation and Distance on Voluntary Association Participation Among the Aged," Aging and Human Development, Volume 5, 1974, 81.
- Filer, Richard. "A Useful Contribution Climate for the Aging," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 17-18, 1962-63, 51.
- Fink, Howard. "The Relationship of Time Perspectives to Age, Institutionalization and Activity," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 12-13, 1957-58, 414.
- Freedman, Edward. "Age, Length of Institutionalization and Social Status in a Home for the Aged," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 22, 1967, 474.
- Fuchs, Doras. "The Hodson Community Center: An Experiment in Preservation of Personality," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 1, 1946, 55.

- Goldstein, Sidney. "Consumer Patterns of Aged Spending Units," <u>Journal</u> of Gerontology, Volume 14, 1959, 331.
- Granick, Samuel. "Psychology of Senility," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 5, 1950, 55.
- Granick, Samuel. "Adjustment of Older People in Two Florida Communities," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 7, 1952, 419.
- Gravatt, Arthur. "Family Relations in Middle and Old Age," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 8, 1953, 197.
- Havighurst, Robert. "Problems of Sampling and Interviewing Old People," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 5, 1950, 158.
- Hoffman, Adeline. The Daily Needs and Interests of Older People.

 Springfield, Illinois: Thomas Books, 1970.
- Krugman, Arnold. "A Note on the Level-of-Aspiration Behavior and Aging," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 14, 1959, 222.
- Jeffers, Francis. "The Relationship of Activity and Attitudes to Physical Well-Being in Old People," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 16, 1961, 67.
- Johnson, Ralph. "Health Standards of Housing for the Aged Population," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 7, 1952, 254.
- Maddox, George. "Some Correlates of Differences in Self-Assessment of Health Status among the Elderly," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 17-18, 1962-63, 180.
- Maher, Howard. "Age and Performance of Two Work Groups," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 10, 1955, 448.
- Moberg, David. "Church Membership and Personal Adjustment in Old Age," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 7, 1953, 201.
- Murray, Patricia. "Walking Patterns of Old Men," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 24-25, 1969-70, 169.
- Pan, Ju-Shu. "A Study of the Influence of Institutionalization on the Social Adjustment of Old People," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 3, 1948
- Pihlblad, C. T. "Widowhood, Social Participation and Life Satisfaction," Aging and Human Development, Volume 3, 1972, 323.
- Powers, Edward. "Meaning of Work to Older Workers," Aging and Human Development, Volume 2, 1971, 38.

- Rohles, Frederick H. The Ecosystem Complex: A New Approach to Specifying the Man-Environment Relationship, Reprint, Institute of Environmental Research, Kansas State University, 2.
- Roscow, Irving. "A Guttman Health Scale for the Aged," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 21, 1966, 556.
- Rubenstein, Daniel. "An Evaluation of Social Participation Found Among a National Sample of Black and White Elderly," Aging and Human Development, Volume 2, 1971, 172.
- Sanders, Sidney. "Aging and the Concept of Space: The Conservation of Surfaces," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 21, 1966, 281.
- U. S. Senate, Special Committee on Aging, Hearings. Older Americans and Transportation: A Crisis in Mobility, 91st Cong., 2nd Session, 1970.
- Shanas, Ethel. "Family Responsibility and the Health of the Aged," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 15, 1960, 408.
- Schulze, Oskar. "Recreation for the Aged," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 4, 1949, 310.
- Smith, Wallace. "The Housing Preference of the Elderly," <u>Journal of</u>
 <u>Gerontology</u>, Volume 16, 1961, 261.
- Snyder, Lorraine. "An Exploratory Study of Patterns of Social Interaction Organization and Facility Design in Three Nursing Homes," Aging and Human Development, Volume 4, 1973, 382.
- Strom, Alex. "An Investigation of the Living Conditions and Health of 1389 Persons Aged 70 Years or More in Norway," <u>Journal of Gerontology</u>, Volume 11, 1956, 178.
- Tallmer, Margot. "Disengagement and the Stress of Aging," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 24-25, 1969, 70.
- Thompson, Wayne. "The Effect of Retirement on Personal Adjustment," Journal of Gerontology, Volume 15, 1960, 165.
- Weil, Julius. "Changing Trends in Care of the Aged," <u>Journal of</u> Gerontology, Volume 2, 1947, 148.
- Zborowski, Mark. "Aging and Social Participation," <u>Journal of</u> <u>Gerontology</u>, Volume 17-18, 1962-63, 421.

Actual Weekly Patterns - Questionaire
Day: MONDAY () TUESDAY () WEDNESDAY () THURSDAY (
FRIDAY () SATURDAY () SUNDAY ()
dow many times did you travel outside your apartment today?
How many times did you use your car () walk () bus () taxi () friends car ().
How long were you away from your apartment in each trip today?(hours,minutes)?

THE IDENTIFICATION OF DESCRIPTIVE VARIABLES RELATED TO MOBILITY PATTERNS OF THE ELDERLY: A CASE STUDY OF A MULTI-UNIT HOUSING RESIDENCE IN MANHATTAN, KANSAS

by

FREDERICK H. ROHLES III

B. S., Kansas State University, 1973

AN ABSTRACT OF A MASTER'S THESIS

submitted in partial fulfillment of the

requirements for the degree

MASTER OF REGIONAL AND COMMUNITY PLANNING

Department of Regional and Community Planning

KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY Manhattan, Kansas A case study of 59 elderly residents at the Manhattan Tower and their mobility patterns, attempted to determine and discover any independent variables which could describe the frequency of trips, types of trips (trip purpose), mode of transportation and length, in time, of trips.

Health, length of residence in Manhattan, number of living relatives in Manhattan and friendship associations were the variables which described the trips taken by the sample population. Recommendations for planning and transportation planning were made with emphasis on making the elderly more "mobile" rather than making transportation facilities more accessible.